JAMES P. SCANLAN
1527 30th Street, N.W., Apt. B-2
Washington, D.C. 20007
(202) 337-3927

March 2, 1998

CONFI DENTI AL

The Honor abl e Janet Reno

Attorney General of the United States
United States Departnent of Justice
10th Street & Constitution Ave., N W
Washi ngton, D.C. 20530

Re: Prosecutorial M sconduct by the Ofice of
I ndependent Counsel in United States of Anerica v.
Deborah Gore Dean, Crim No. 92-181-TFH (D.D. C.)

Dear Attorney Ceneral Reno:

By letter dated January 14, 1998, | provided you a copy of a
letter to Departnent of Justice |Inspector CGeneral Mchael R
Bromwi ch dated January 23, 1997, in which | had requested an
expedited investigation into the Departnment of Justice's handling
of allegations of prosecutorial msconduct by attorneys of Ofice
of Independent Counsel Arlin M Adans in the prosecution of
United States of Anmerica v. Deborah Gore Dean, Crim No. 92-181-
TFH (D.D.C.). | had made the allegations in materials provided
to the Departnent of Justice and VWhite House Counsel Abner J.

M kva bet ween Decenber 1994 and March 1996 in connection with
requests for an investigation of the Ofice of |ndependent
Counsel and for the renoval of Assistant Attorney CGeneral Jo Ann
Harris and other fornmer |ndependent Counsel attorneys from
positions in the Departnent of Justice.

In the letter to M. Bromm ch, | contended that Departnment
of Justice officials had failed to investigate the allegations of
prosecutorial msconduct in good faith out of concern that an
i nvestigation would reveal that certain |Independent Counsel
attorneys who went on to hold high positions in the Departnent of
Justice, including Assistant Attorney General for the Crimnal
Division, violated federal |laws through their actions as
I ndependent Counsel attorneys in the Dean case. In ny letter to
you, | requested that you again consider whether there exist
grounds for the renoval of |ndependent Counsel Larry D. Thonpson
(who succeeded Arlin M Adans as | ndependent Counsel in July
1995) bot h because the Departnent of Justice did not previously
consider the matter in good faith and because devel opnents
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subsequent to the Departnent's |ast communication to ne on the
matter provide independent justification for reconsideration of
the earlier determnation. Though I requested that you conmence
an investigation inmmediately, | indicated that | would be
submtting within the next six weeks a detail ed account of

devel opnents subsequent to the Departnent’'s |ast communication to
ne.

I will be submitting that account in the tine frane
indicated in nmy earlier letter. This letter, however, is
intended to bring to your attention certain recent devel opnments
pertinent to issues raised in ny letter to you as well as in the
letter to M. Bromm ch.

Section A addresses the I ndependent Counsel's action with
regard to ny Freedomof Information Act (FO A) request pending
with the Ofice of Independent Counsel since August 29, 1997,
that by its term enconpassed material containing allegations of
prosecutorial abuse that Counsel for the Ofice of Professional
Responsibility M chael E. Shaheen, Jr. provided |Independent
Counsel Larry D. Thonpson by letter dated February 25, 1997. As
di scussed in ny letter to M. Bromwich (at 9-10, 62-67), by
| etter dated Novenber 15, 1996, a fornmer enployee of the Ofice
of I ndependent Counsel wote to M. Shaheen alleging that
I ndependent Counsel attorneys had engaged in various acts of
prosecutorial msconduct. The npst notable of these allegations
were that |ndependent Counsel Arlin M Adans and Deputy
I ndependent Counsel destroyed interview reports not helpful to
t he | ndependent Counsel's case and edited interview reports for
content and that Deputy Independent Counsel Swartz had suppressed
evidence and viol ated discovery rules. After failing to do
anything with the conplaint for nore than three nonths, M.
Shaheen finally forwarded it to Independent Counsel Larry D.
Thonpson. | explained in the letter to M. Bromwich that in M.
Shaheen's description of the underlying allegations in his
transmittal letter to M. Thonpson (the only part of the material
that the Departnent of Justice would nmake avail abl e under FO A),
M . Shaheen had made t he conpl ai nt appear |ess serious by
elimnating the reference to the allegation that |Independent
Counsel Adans and Deputy | ndependent Counsel Swartz destroyed
interview reports and by presenting the allegation concerning the
editing of interview reports in a manner to dimnish the
suggestion the reports were edited for content. | also explained
that, though in forwarding the conplaint M. Shaheen stated that
he expected M. Thonpson to informthe affected courts of any
i nstances where crimnal convictions were tainted by
prosecutorial m sconduct, in fact M. Shaheen had anple reason to
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know that M. Thonpson would do nothing to informthe affected
courts of such instances.

As di scussed in Section A responding to ny FO A request,
the O fice of |Independent Counsel repeatedly represented that it
di d not possess any docunents matching the description of the
conpl ai nt enclosed with M. Shaheen's |etter dated February 25,
1997. After | provided the |Independent Counsel a copy of M.
Shaheen's transmittal letter (which I did not secure until
Decenber 1997), Deputy I ndependent Counsel Dianne J. Smith
represented that she had previously been unaware of the letter
from M. Shaheen to M. Thonpson because it was maintained in a
file where such material ordinarily would not be kept. For a
nunber of reasons, including the fact that the underlying
conplaint alleged that Ms. Smth had herself inproperly used
governnent resources to attenpt to distribute an inported yogurt
product, there is reason to believe that Ms. Smth's
representati ons concerning the | ack of know edge of the
ref erenced conpl aint are fal se.

If we assunme, however, that Ms. Smith's statements were
true, the fact that the conplaint transmtted by M. Shaheen was
treated in a way that the Deputy |Independent Counsel did not even
know of its existence confirnms the understanding that regardless
of the nature of allegations of m sconduct by Independent Counsel
attorneys, |ndependent Counsel Larry D. Thonpson will not
i nvestigate such all egati ons.

Section B addresses the I ndependent Counsel's actions with
regard to nmy Freedom of Information Act request pending since
August 29, 1997, concerning a docunent that there is reason to
believe was altered as a part of the effort by Deputy |Independent
Counsel Bruce C. Swartz (now Counsel to Acting Assistant Attorney
General John C. Keeney) and Associ ate |Independent Counsel Jo Ann
Harris (who had assuned the position of Assistant Attorney
General for the Criminal Division at the time | first filed ny
conmplaints with the Departnent of Justice) to deceive the court
concerning certain exhibits the Independent Counsel introduced
into evidence to support a false entry in the Superseding
Indictnment in the Dean case. As discussed in nmy letter to M.
Brommi ch (at 71), there is reason to believe that in order to
facilitate the Independent Counsel's false use of Governnent
Exhi bits 20 and 25, |ndependent Counsel attorneys excl uded
certain information fromthe report of an interview of Aristides
Martinez conducted on May 15, 1992. | have also been led to
understand that agents of the Ofice of |ndependent Counse
falsified the transcription dates on interview reports that were
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provided to the defense. Thus, pursuant to FOA, | requested a
copy of the Martinez interview report show ng the date typed on
it as the date it was prepared.

In responding to ny request, the Independent Counsel
repeatedly denied that it possessed a copy of such a docunent.
Deputy | ndependent Counsel Dianne J. Smith then represented that
t he I ndependent Counsel had m sunderstood the request and that
such a docunent did exist, but that the Independent Counsel woul d
not provide it until a fee dispute was resolved. Now that the
fee dispute has been resol ved, the Independent Counsel refuses to
provide the docunent, for the first tinme claimng that the
information is exenpt from di scl osure pursuant to FO A exenpti ons
6 and 7. Those exenptions do not provide a plausible basis for
refusing to disclose the information.

A The | ndependent Counsel's Actions Regardi ng The
Complaint O Prosecutorial M sconduct Transnitted To
| ndependent Counsel Larry D. Thonpson By Letter From
Counsel For The Ofice O Professional Responsibility
M chael E. Shaheen, Jr. Dated February 25, 1997

As di scussed in ny Decenber 23, 1997 letter to Departnent of
Justice I nspector General Mchael R Brommch (at 9-10, 62-67),
by letter dated Novenber 15, 1996, to Counsel for the Ofice of
Prof essi onal Responsibility Mchael E. Shaheen, Jr., a forner
enpl oyee of the Ofice of Independent Counsel alleged that
I ndependent Counsel attorneys had abused their positions in a
nunber of ways. The nost significant of the allegations were
t hat | ndependent Counsel Arlin M Adans and Deputy | ndependent
Counsel Bruce C. Swartz had destroyed interview reports that did
not further the Independent Counsel's case and had edited
interview reports for content and that Deputy | ndependent Counsel
Swartz had suppressed evidence and viol ated di scovery rules.
Among ot her allegations were that Associate | ndependent Counsel
Jo Ann Harris had steered a lucrative contract to a friend and
that a prosecutor named Dianne J. Smith used government tine and
resources to set up a distributorship for an inported yogurt
product. Dianne J. Smith assunmed the position of Deputy
I ndependent Counsel when Deputy | ndependent Counsel Swartz |eft
the O fice of |Independent Counsel to assume a position as a
Speci al Assistant to Assistant Attorney CGeneral for the Crimna
Division Jo Ann Harri s.

As discussed in ny letter to M. Bromwi ch, the allegations
inthis letter not only supported clains I had previously made to
t he Departnment of Justice, but thenselves warranted
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i nvestigation, particularly when considered in |ight of the
detailed allegations | had previously made to the Departnent.
Moreover, at the time M. Shaheen received this conplaint he had
anpl e reason to know that | ndependent Counsel Larry D. Thonpson
woul d do nothing to address the allegations of this conplai nant
regardl ess of the nerit of the allegations, anong ot her reasons,
because M. Shaheen knew that M. Thonpson, though fully informed
of the matter previously brought to the attention of the
Departnent of Justice, had done nothing to address the

I ndependent Counsel's prior msconduct. Nevertheless, M.
Shaheen, after doing nothing with the conplaint for nore than
three nonths, nmerely transmtted the conplaint to I ndependent
Counsel Larry D. Thonpson by letter dated February 25, 1997. In
the transmttal letter, which described the underlying conpl aint
in ways that would dimnish the inpression of prosecutorial abuse
(see Letter to Inspector CGeneral Bromwi ch at 65-66), M. Shaheen
stated: "O course, if your investigation should determ ne that
any crimnal prosecutions were tainted by m sconduct, we expect
that you will take appropriate steps to informthe affected
courts.”

On August 29, 1997, | submitted a Freedom of Information Act
request to the I ndependent Counsel requesting the follow ng
records:

8. Al'l docunments not filed in court in which the
O fice of Independent Counsel or | ndependent
Counsel attorneys have been accused of
prosecutorial msconduct or of attenpting to
m sl ead the court.

By letter dated Septenber 5, 1997, | stated that the
I ndependent Counsel should not include in its response to Item
No. 8 of the August 29, 1997 request docunents literally falling
under the request that | had personally submtted to the Ofice
of I ndependent Counsel .

After | had agreed to pay up to $250.00 in search and
reproduction fees by letter dated Septenber 15, 1997, | received
materials provided with a letter from Adm nistrative Oficer
Theresa W Duggan dated Septenber 26, 1997, which stated with
regard to the docunents the I ndependent Counsel had produced:

Encl osed please find the docunents responsive to your
FO A request of August 29, 1997. \Where appropri ate,
certain personal privacy information has been w thhel d
from di scl osure pursuant to exenption 6 of the FO A



The Honor abl e Janet Reno
At torney Genera

March 2, 1998

Page 6

Encl osed were approxi mately 1,064 pages of material,
i ncluding sonme materials evidently responsive to Item No. 4 of
t hat request, from which sone personal information had indeed
been redacted. The only material enclosed that appeared
responsive to ItemNo. 8 was a May 6, 1997 letter to | ndependent
Counsel Larry D. Thonpson from Acting Assistant Attorney Genera
John C. Keeney, enclosing sone materials that had been forwarded
to the Departnent of Justice by Senator Wendell Ford.

By letter dated Cctober 24, 1997, | informed Deputy
I ndependent Counsel Dianne J. Smith that the materials encl osed
with M. Keeney's May 6, 1997 letter were the only docunents
apparently responsive to Item No. 8 of ny request of August 29,
1997. | also explained that | did not believe that these
materials were the only docunents not filed in court (other than
the materials submtted by ne) in which the Ofice of |Independent
Counsel or |ndependent Counsel attorneys have been accused of
prosecutorial msconduct or of attenpting to mislead the court.
| then stated:

I would therefore appreciate your conferring with

I ndependent Counsel Larry D. Thonpson to verify that

the O fice of Independent Counsel represents that the

letter from M. Keeney just described is the only

docunment responsive to Item No. 8.

And | not ed:

As with other matters | have brought to the attention
of the Ofice of |Independent Counsel, be m ndful that
any fal se representation to nme concerning this matter
woul d violate 18 U. S.C. § 1001.

By letter dated Novenber 24, 1997, responding to ny appea
and request for clarification, Deputy |Independent Counsel Smith
stated in evident response to ny request that the |Independent
Counsel clarify whether the materials provided by M. Keeney were
the only materials responsive to Item No. 8 (enphasis added):

In addition, be advised that this office and its
enpl oyees are fully aware of their obligations under
federal law, including the FOA and wll continue to
act in accordance therewith. The O C has provi ded you
with all unexenpted docunents responsive to your
requests. Your suggestion that any "fal se
representation” to you would violate 18 U. S.C. § 1001
is both legally incorrect and of fensive.
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In an appeal letter dated Novenber 29, 1997, | expl ained
that this response left me still not knowi ng whether the Ofice
of I ndependent Counsel represented that the materials supplied by
M. Keeney were the only materials in court falling under Item
No. 8. | noted that | did not interpret Ms. Duggan's letter of
Sept enber 26, 1997, to nmean that there m ght be responsive
materials other than those provided to the |Independent Counsel by
M. Keeney, but that such materials had been wi thheld pursuant to
the privacy exenption referenced in Ms. Duggan's letter. | also
poi nted out, however, that the quoted | anguage from M. Smith's
| etter suggested the possibility that, as | stated |I believed was
in fact the case, there did exist additional material containing
accusations of prosecutorial msconduct by the Ofice of
I ndependent Counsel .

Thus, | again requested that the O fice of |ndependent
Counsel state whether the materials provided by M. Keeney were
the only materials responsive to Item No. 8 of ny August 29, 1997
Freedom of Information Act request. | also requested that if the
I ndependent Counsel was taking the position that, based on sone
Freedom of Information Act exenption, the |Independent Counsel
does not have to disclose whether such materials exist, it would
So state.

In my letter of Novenber 29, 1997 (at 5-6), | also stated
that | was recently led to believe that near the end of February
1997, Counsel for the Ofice of Professional Responsibility
M chael E. Shaheen, Jr. had represented that he was forwarding
certain materials to M. Thonpson containing allegations of
prosecutorial abuse by I ndependent Counsel attorneys. | noted
that | had been | ed to understand that anong those all egations
were clainms that |ndependent Counsel attorneys had nodified or
destroyed interview reports. And | noted that these materials
woul d have been transmitted to M. Thonpson at approxi mately the
same tine that | first brought to the attention of Ms. Smith and
M. Thonpson, by ny letter to M. Thonpson dated February 26,
1997 (at 5), ny reasons for believing that Independent Counse
attorneys had excluded certain information fromthe report of the
May 15, 1992 interview of Aristides Martinez that woul d have
interfered with the Independent Counsel's intended fal se use of
the Arama consul tant agreenent in Government Exhibits 20 and 25.1

1

See ny letter to M. Thonpson dated February 26, 1997, at
5. See also ny letters to M. Thonpson dated March 26, 1997 (at
5), May 14, 1997 (at 5-6), June 9, 1997 (at 2), and July 3, 1997
(at 2), and July 28, 1997 (at 2).
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| pointed out that this was an inportant issue with regard
to the matter that had been the subject of ny extensive
correspondence with M. Thonpson since February 26, 1997
including ny repeated efforts to cause M. Thonpson to discl ose
whet her the docunent he represented to be a true copy of
Government Exhibit 25 in his letter to me dated March 25, 1997
(but fromwhich the part nost relevant to the | ndependent
Counsel's fal se use of the exhibit was mssing), was in fact a
true copy of that exhibit. Thus, | pointed out that any attenpt
to deceive ne in responding to ny Freedom of Information Act
request concerning this matter would violate 18 U. S.C. § 1001 and
probably other federal |aws as well.

Finally, | noted that whether in fact M. Shaheen had
forwarded the nmaterials referenced above was the subject of a
Freedom of Information Act request pending with the Departnent of
Justi ce.

By letter to me dated Decenber 19, 1997, Ms. Smith stated
with regard to the request for clarification concerning Item No.
8 of ny Freedom of Information Act request dated August 29, 1997,
and certain other requests for clarification in ny letter dated
Novenber 29, 1997:

As regards the remaining clarifications sought, the OC
has fully conplied with its FOA obligations in its
previous responses to those issues. The OC therefore
deni es your appeal as to those clarifications.

Between the tine of ny letter dated Novenber 29, 1997, and

Ms. Smith's response dated Decenber 19, 1997, | had secured a
copy of the letter by which M. Shaheen transmtted the above-
referenced conplaint of prosecutorial abuse to |ndependent
Counsel Larry D. Thonpson. By letter dated January 5, 1998
(Attachnment 1), | transmtted a copy of that letter to Ms. Smth.

In the transmttal letter to Ms. Smth, after recounting the
history of nmy efforts to cause the Independent Counsel to state
whet her the | ndependent Counsel had received any conplaints of
prosecutorial msconduct not filed in court other than those
submtted by nme and the material provided by M. Keeney to M.
Thonpson, | again requested that the Independent Counsel clarify
whet her, contrary to the representation effected by the
I ndependent Counsel's Freedom of Information Act response dated
Sept enber 26, 1997, the Independent Counsel did possess at | east
a copy of the February 25, 1997 letter from Counsel for the
O fice of Professional Responsibility Mchael E. Shaheen, Jr. and
its enclosure. | then stated:
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I f the Independent Counsel does possess the letter
from M. Shaheen and its enclosure, pursuant to the
Freedom of Information Act, may | have copies? |If the
I ndependent Counsel refuses to provide copies, on what
Freedom of Information Act exenption does the
I ndependent Counsel base that refusal ? Does the
I ndependent Counsel possess other records reflecting
conpl ai nts of prosecutorial abuse by |Independent
Counsel attorneys other than those nmade by ne and ot her
than those in the materials provided with M. Shaheen's
letter dated February 25, 19977

By letter dated February 2, 1998 (Attachnment 2), Ms. Smth
provided ne a copy of the letter from M. Shaheen to M.
Thonpson, stating:

Finally, upon receipt of your letter requesting the
February 25, 1997 letter from Counsel for the Ofice of
Pr of essi onal Responsibility M chael Shaheen, the AQC
conducted another review of its files to determne if
it had a copy of this letter. The OC found a copy of
the letter in a location not ordinarily containing
correspondence of the nature you request ed.

Ms. Smith's letter, however, nade no reference to the
encl osure to the letter from M. Shaheen to M. Thonpson and did
not respond to the other question posed in nmy letter. Thus, by
letter dated February 9, 1998 (Attachnent 3), | again requested
that the I ndependent Counsel provide nme a copy of the enclosure
to the letter to M. Shaheen. |In addition, in light of M.
Smth's acknow edgnent that, contrary to earlier representations
by the Ofice of |Independent Counsel, the O fice of |Independent
Counsel did possess at |east one conplaint of prosecutorial
m sconduct not filed in court other than in materials submtted
by me and other than in the materials provided in the May 6, 1997
letter from M. Keeney, | again requested an assurance that the
I ndependent Counsel possesses no ot her conpl aints of
prosecutorial msconduct not filed in court other than those just
descri bed and other than the materials provided in the February
25, 1997 letter from M. Shaheen.

As discussed in the introductory section, for a variety of
reasons, including the fact that the letter enclosed with the
February 25, 1997 letter from M. Shaheen to M. Thonpson
specifically alleged that Ms. Smth had herself m sused
government resources in order to conduct a business for profit
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whil e enpl oyed by the Ofice of |ndependent Counsel, there is
reason to believe that Ms. Smth was fully aware of the materials
provided in the February 25, 1997 letter from M. Shaheen when
she repeatedly represented to ne that she was aware of no such
materials. On the other hand, however, assumng that Ms. Smth's
representati ons regardi ng her know edge of the letter from M.
Shaheen and the conplaint it enclosed were true, the facts that
the conplaint transmtted by M. Shaheen was treated in a manner
that the Deputy I ndependent Counsel was unaware of its existence
and that good faith efforts to | ocate any such docunent failed to
do so confirnms that, regardless of the nature of allegations of

I ndependent Counsel m sconduct, they will not be investigated or
addressed by the current |Independent Counsel. Thus, whether or
not Ms. Smth's representations to ne concerning her unawareness
of the conplaint transmtted to M. Thonpson by M. Shaheen were
true or false, these events provide additional reason why the
Departnment of Justice cannot rely on the Ofice of |Independent
Counsel to call to the courts' attention instances where
convictions were tainted by prosecutorial abuses.

In addressing this matter with you, however, | do not nean
to suggest that it adds materially to things you al ready know
about | ndependent Counsel Larry D. Thonpson's refusal to alert
the court concerning | ndependent Counsel m sconduct, even when
t hat m sconduct violates federal law. The letter to M. Bromw ch
and the materials provided with it, including the Decenber 9,
1997 letter to M. Thonpson, nake clear that M. Thonpson is
fully aware that |ndependent Counsel Arlin M Adans, Deputy
I ndependent Counsel Bruce C. Swartz, Associ ate |ndependent
Counsel Claudia J. Flynn (until recently Chief of Staff for the
Crimnal Division), and Associ ate |Independent Counsel Robert J.
Meyer (attorney in the Crimnal Division) were involved in a
conspiracy to obstruct justice by deceiving the court in
resi sting discovery into whether Supervisory Special Agent Al vin
R Cain, Jr. committed perjury. You should also be well aware
that M. Thonpson, who presumably is hinself now a party to that
conspiracy, will do nothing to address it. Nevertheless,
believe it appropriate that you be infornmed of the
representations the Independent Counsel has nmade concerning a
matter in which the Departnment of Justice has ostensibly
presented itself as believing that |Independent Counsel woul d
address instances where convictions were tainted by prosecutorial
abuses.
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B. The | ndependent Counsel's Refusal To Provide A Dated
Copy O The May 15, 1992 Interview Report O Aristides
Marti nez

As discussed in ny letter to M. Bromm ch (at 71), and as
nmenti oned above, there is reason to believe that in order to
facilitate the fal se use of Governnent Exhibits 20 and 25,

I ndependent Counsel attorneys excluded certain information from
the report of an interview of Aristides Martinez conducted on My
15, 1992. | explained the reasoning for this view in various
letters to M. Thonpson seeking an opportunity to reviewthe
originals of those and certain other exhibits and requesting that
M . Thonpson explain why the part of Governnment Exhibit 25 nost
significant in the Independent Counsel's false use of that
exhibit was m ssing fromthe copy of Governnment Exhibit 25 M.
Thonpson provided to me by letter dated March 25, 1997. This
concerns a matter in which Associ ate | ndependent Counsel Jo Ann
Harris and Deputy | ndependent Counsel Bruce C. Swartz woul d both
have been involved. And unless the Departnent of Justice takes
the position that it is not a violation of federal |aw for
federal prosecutors to make false entries in an indictnment and

i ntroduce fal se docunents into evidence to support those entries,
Departnment of Justice officials have had reason to know for nore
than three years that Ms. Harris and M. Swartz engaged in
crimnal conduct regarding this nmatter

In addition to believing that |Independent Counsel attorneys
had excluded information fromthe Martinez interview report that
woul d have precluded the Independent Counsel's fal se use of
Government Exhibits 20 and 25, | had reason to believe that the
dates typed on interview reports as the dates on which the
reports were transcribed were not the true dates on which the
reports were transcribed. M basis for this belief was know edge
that the sane forner |ndependent Counsel enployee who wote the
Novenber 15, 1996 letter to M. Shaheen had el sewhere all eged
that agents of the O fice of |Independent Counsel had falsified
the dates on the interview reports. The |Independent Counsel had
redacted the dates fromall interview reports provided to the
defense in the Dean case. Wile having no strong reason to
believe that the date typed on the Martinez interview report
woul d be revealing of whether information had been excluded from
the report, | nevertheless had an interest in | earning what date
was typed on the report for such bearing as it m ght have on that
i ssue and for such bearing as it mght have on the separate issue
of the falsification of the dates on which the interview reports
were transcribed, which | assunme would be a violation of 18
U S. C § 1001.
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Thus, in a FO A request dated Septenber 15, 1997, | sought
the follow ng records (enphasis added):

6. Al'l versions in any nedi umof the report of
the interview of Aristides Martinez conducted
on May 15, 1992, other than the one found as
Exhibit 1 to the Menorandum in Support of
Def endant Deborah Gore Dean's Mtion for
D sm ssal of the Superseding Indictnent or,
inthe Alternative, for a New Trial on A
Counts (Feb. 4, 1997) in United States of
Anerica v. Deborah Gore Dean, Cim No. 92-
181-TFH (D.D. C.).

7. A copy of the interview of Aristides Martinez
conducted on May 15, 1992, found as Exhibit 1
to Menorandum in Support of Defendant Deborah
Core Dean's Motion for Dismssal of the
Supersedi ng Indictnment or, in the
Alternative, for a New Trial on Al Counts
(Feb. 4, 1997) in United States of Anerica v.
Deborah Gore Dean, Crim No. 92-181-TFH
(D.D.C.), showing the date typed on the
report as the date on which the report was
pr epar ed.

8. Any docunents indicating that the date typed
on the report of the interview of Aristides
Martinez conducted on May 15, 1992, found as
Exhibit 1 to the Menorandum in Support of
Def endant Deborah Gore Dean's Mtion for
Di sm ssal of the Superseding Indictnent or,
inthe Alternative, for a New Trial on A
Counts (Feb. 4, 1997) in United States of
Anerica v. Deborah Gore Dean, CGrim No. 92-
181-TFH (D.D.C.), as the date on which the
report was prepared is not the true date on
whi ch the report was prepared.

In a letter from I ndependent Counsel Adm nistrative Oficer
Theresa W Duggan dat ed Septenber 29, 1997, the Independent
Counsel stated that any records responsive to Item No. 6 would be
exenpt from di scl osure pursuant to FO A exenptions 3, 7(A) and/or
7(C), and that there were no records responsive to Nos. 7 and 8.

In nmy appeal letter to Deputy |Independent Counsel Dianne J.
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Smth dated October 25, 1997, noting that it was difficult to
believe that there could be no docunent responsive to Item No. 7,
| asked Ms. Smith to state whether | was m staken that the
redacted material at the beginning of the first page and the end
of the last page of the Martinez interview report included a date
on which the report was supposed to have been prepared. | also
asked Ms. Smith to state whether there existed any copy of the
docurment in the I ndependent Counsel's files with the date

showi ng, including any docunent maintained in electronic form

Rat her than answer these quite sinple questions, by letter
dat ed Novenber 24, 1997, Ms. Smith responded to ny appeal by
stating: "The O Creiterates that there are no docunents
responsive to requests Nos. 7-10 and 12 (of your FO A request
dated Septenber 15, 1997)."

| appealed this matter once nmore by letter dated Novenber
29, 1997, pointing out that I had in several places stated
reasons to believe that |Independent Counsel attorneys excl uded
material fromthe Martinez interview report that would have shown
that the Independent Counsel's intended use of Government
Exhibits 20 and 25 was false. | also noted that | believed that
agents of the Ofice of Independent Counsel may have typed dates
on interview reports as the dates on which the reports were
prepared that were not the true dates on which the reports were
pr epar ed.

| then stated:

What | perceive as your refusal to give a
straightforward answer to sone very sinple questions
provi des additional support for that belief. In any
case, | believe the literal construction of your
statenent is that in fact there exists no docunent

what ever reflecting the date that had been typed on the
interview as the date on which it was prepared. |If
that is not the true intention of your statenent,

pl ease so advi se ne.

Meanwhil e a fee dispute had arisen as a result of the
I ndependent Counsel's seeking a $443. 00 paynent for a
suppl enmental response to ny FO A request dated August 29, 1997,
for which | had agreed to pay up to $250.00 for a conplete
response and for which | had already paid $233.40. The
I ndependent Counsel assessed the charge wi thout consulting with
me as required by I ndependent Counsel regulations. This led to
my Novenber 28, 1997 appeal of the charge, which the | ndependent
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Counsel denied by letter dated Decenber 19, 1997. In that
letter, the Independent Counsel also stated that it would refuse
to conply with further FO A requests unless | paid the contested
anount in full or returned the docunents for which the disputed
charges had been incurred.?

In another letter dated Decenber 19, 1997, Ms. Smith
replied to my Novenber 29, 1997 request for further clarification
concerning a dated copy of the Martinez interview report by
representing that the Independent Counsel had not previously
understood Item No. 7 of ny Septenber 15, 1997 request to
enconpass "a copy of the Aristides Martinez interview report

indicating the date on which the report was transcribed.” M.
Smith also stated that the Independent Counsel did possess such a
docunent, but would not provide it until | paid the disputed

char ge di scussed above.

By letter to Ms. Smith dated January 5, 1998, | conplied
wth Ms. Smith's demand that in |ieu of paynent of the di sputed

2 The I ndependent Counsel's actions concerning this matter

are detailed in ny letter to Deputy |ndependent Counsel Smth

dat ed Novenber 28, 1997, and Ms. Smith's representation as to why
t he | ndependent Counsel believed it was unnecessary to contact ne
before incurring an additional expense of $443.00 is found in one
of the letter's fromM. Smth dated Decenber 19, 1997. Though

t he I ndependent Counsel's actions concerning this matter suggest
that this and another |arge search and reproduction charge
assessed wi thout conpliance with |Independent Counsel regulations
were intended to give the I ndependent Counsel a basis for
refusing to conply with further FO A requests, the matter does
not warrant detailed treatnment in this letter.
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charge for the supplenental response to ny FO A request dated
August 29, 1997, | return the docunents provided in the

suppl emental response. In the sane letter, | requested that the
I ndependent Counsel provide the Martinez interview report as soon
as possible, since the docunent shoul d have been provided to ne
in the response of Septenber 29, 1997. | also noted that:

In light of your characterization of the docunent, |
assunme | can accept the providing of the docunent as a
representation by you that the date on the report
purporting to indicate that date on which the report
was transcribed is in fact that [sic] true date on

whi ch the report was transcri bed.

The | ndependent Counsel did not respond to this request
until February 2, 1998. In the Independent Counsel's letter of
that date, Ms. Smith now interposed for the first tine that
obj ections that the docunent was exenpt from di scl osure pursuant
to exenptions 6 and 7 of the Freedom of Information Act.

The initial request for a dated copy of the Martinez
interview report in the August 29, 1997 FO A request was cl ear
enough. There is thus reason to believe that the |Independent
Counsel's initial clainms that no such docunent existed were
del aying tactics. There is also reason to believe that the
initial refusal to provide the docunent because of the disputed
charge, after the first acknow edgnent of its existence by letter
dat ed Decenber 19, 1997, was a further delaying tactic. And I
suggest that there is no nerit to the I ndependent Counsel's
bel ated resort to FO A exenptions to refuse to provide the
docunment. Thus, there is reason to believe that, whether or not
mat eri al was excluded fromthe interview report that would have
interfered wth the Independent Counsel's false use of Governnent
Exhi bits 20 and 25 and whether or not the |Independent Counsel
believes that the date typed on the report as the date of
transcription is relevant to this issue, there is reason to
believe that the date is a false date. There is also reason to
believe that the |Independent Counsel has violated its obligations
under FOA in an effort to conceal this information.

| believe that Bruce C. Swartz, who nust give truthfu
responses to questions you pose in this matter, can explain to
you that indeed information was excluded fromthe interview
report because the information would have interfered with the
i ntended fal se use of Government Exhibits 20 and 25. M. Swartz
can also explain to you whether agents of the Ofice of
I ndependent Counsel falsified the preparation dates on interview
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reports and whether there is a false date on the Marti nez
interview report. | suggest that you cannot fulfil your
responsibilities for oversight of the Ofice of |Independent
Counsel w thout making these inquiries.

Be m ndful, however, that regardless of the facts concerning
the Martinez interview report, the Departnent of Justice has | ong
had a basis for knowing that M. Swartz and Ms. Harris conspired
to nake a false entry in the Superseding Indictnent with the
intent of m srepresenting the nature of certain exhibits that
woul d be introduced into evidence to support that false entry.
Thus, unless the Departnent of Justice takes the position that
such conduct is not crimnal, assum ng that Departnent officials
initially discharged their responsibilities in this manner
conpetently and in good faith, the Departnent has | ong known that
M. Swartz and Ns. Harris violated | aws through their actions as
prosecutors in the Dean case.

Si ncerely,

/s/ Janmes P. Scanl an

Janes P. Scanl an
Attachnents

cc: The Honorable Orin G Hatch
Chai r man
Senate Judiciary Comm ttee

The Honorable Henry J. Hyde
Chai r man
House Judiciary Committee

M chael R Bromw ch, Esq.
I nspect or Ceneral



